
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
NINTH SESSION 
Official Record., 

CONTENTS 

Age-nda i:-em 12: 

Report of the Economic and Social Council ( ch;-q>ters 1 V 
and V J (cmtinucd) .. , 231 

Chairman; Mr. Jiii NOSEK (Czechoslovakia). 

AGENDA ITEM 12 

Report of the Economic and Social Council (chap· 
ters IV and V) (A/2686, A/C.J/573, A/C.3/L. 
432) (continued) 

GENERAL DEBATE ( cmJ!inucd) 

1. Mr. COATON (Union of South Africa) said that 
he wished to make some general remarks on reports 
on social, cultural and humanitarian matters. To illus
trate his arguments, he "\VOuld refer specifically to sec
tions VI and V! [] o' chapter V of the report of the 
Economic and Social Council (A/2686) 1, dealing with 
freedom of information and forced labour respectively. 
It was true that those hvo subjects were separate items 
on the Committee's agenda. hut t0 make his meaning 
clear he would be obliged to refer to certain aspects of 
them simultaneously. 

2. The report of the Ad Hoc Co:mnittee on Forced 
Lahour (E/2431) 2 showed that the Union of South 
Africa, having reserved its jurldical position, had co
operated to the fullest extent with the Com:nittee, al
though it contended that every one of the allegations 
referred to :it for comment should have been rejected 
from the outset as being absolutely irrelevant to the 
Committee's terms of reference. It \Yas unfortunate, 
however, that an ad hoc committee entrusted \Vith a 
specific task should have so misinterpreted the facts. 
There could be no douht that it \VctS the first duty of 
any State to manage its affairs so that the maximum 
social benefits might accrue to its peoples within the 
irame\vork (Jf a sound economv. or that a State should 
curb excessive urban migrati~n of un~killed workers 
to ward off the consequent social evils. VVith rehabili
tation and reformation as the oLjectives, it was also 
surely in the best interests of a serious ?ffender against 
the penal Jaws of a country to allow hun to accept, at 
his express wish1 occupation against pay in congenial 
surronndlngs until he could again take hlH proper place 
in society. 

1 0,1idal Records of the General A,~.wm!:ly,, Ninth ScssiflYt, 
Supp/c·ment No.3, 

2 Joint Unhed Nations at1d International Labour Org{\nisation 
document. O(ficiul Records of the Ecouomic and Social Council, 
Si.rtccnilt SCs.rirm, S-upplement .. ~ro, 11 an:.l No 36 in the S!udia 
and Reports (New Seriu) of tlte lnttr-national Labour Office. 

231 

THIRD COMMITIEE, 588th 
.lfEETING 

Friday, 19 November 1954, 
at 10.50 a.m. 

New York 

3. There was no such thing as forced labour in the 
Union of South Africa; forced labour could not exist 
in a t·ountrv where sla\'erv had been abolished more 
than a cent~rv previously. -To assert or even insinuate 
the contrary ,;,.o11ld be libel1ous in the extreme, were it 
not so corl1pletely preposterous. The Union rejected 
and conden:ned the system as strongly as any other 
civilized country in the world. Yet the Ad Hoc Com
mlttee on Forced Lahour had concluded, in the face 
of ::ill :·he ::aclual material submitted to it, that in various 
degrees three of the eight original charges against 
the Union were substantiated. The Union Government 
had submitted to the Economic and Social Council 
further detailed observations on the Ad Hoc Commit
tee's report. which appeared in document E/2431/ Add. 
5 of 17 March 1954, and it hoped that the misleading 
picture given in the report would thereby to some 
extent be corrected, 

4. Tbe C nion of South Africa had no quibble with 
the purposes oi the report of the Rapporteur on Free
dom of lniormation (E/2426) 3 , as defined by the 
Economic and Social Council (resolution 442 C 
(XIV)). !\evertheless, the Rapporteur had snhmit
ted a report which, in so far as references to the 
Cnion of South Africa were concerned, was full of 
inaccuracies, insinuations and unsubstantiated aliega
tions1 largely based on information supplied by certain 
Press agencies. :rvioreover, the manner of presentation 
and the Rr.pporteur's own comments gave the impres
sion that he had had little hesitation in accepting that 
material at its face value. For example, referring to cen
sorship of outgoing news dispatches, the Rapporteur 
h2.d affirrned that various types oi censorship were em
ployed in different countries of the world and had then 
proceeded to quote a survey compiled by the Associated 
Press on conditions in a number of countries, includ
ing the T.;nion of South Africa. The fact that he had 
made it clear that the findings were not his own clid 
not de~ract from the condusion that, by linking them 
,.,·ith his own affirmation, he was dearly endorsing 
them. 
5. The Associated Press survey alleged that, in the 
Union of South Africa, di~patches by foreign corres
pondents were scrutinized during transit through 
government-controlled communication channels. Had 
the I<apporteur probed that allegation impartially and 
objectively he would have found that there was no 
censorship whatsoever of Press dispatches in the 
Cn!on and that the only peace-time control exercised 
h.v the Postmaster-General over all outgoing telegrams 
(Press or ordinary) was the norma) statutory con
trol to prevent the transmission of any telegrams con
taining blasphemous, indecent, ohscene, offensive or 
libellous materiaL That limitation o! freedom of in
formation 'vas dearly recognized by the General As-

3 0 /fir·: a! R tcords of the Economic atu.l Social C ottn:'il, Sirteenth 
s.:ssiMi., Supplem.ent No. 12. 

A/C.3/SR.588 



232 Geaernl ~emhly-Niath Seuion-Third ComDlittee 

sembly, and the lhpportem himself adm:tted that it 
might be necessary in certain circumstances. 

6. Furthermore, the Rapporteur describe<! a metnor
andum of the International Press Institute (E/2426, 
annex C) as an example of the type o£ fa : tual report 
on conditions which could be undertaken e1Iec.tively by 
the profession. That memorandum, howe"rer, pr edicted 
that a recommendation might be adopted b/ the South 
African Press Commission of Inquiry fo r a system of 
licences for all correspondents serving newspapers 
abroad and for their filing copies of their dispatches 
with the State Information Office. Far fro .n being an 
example of factual reporting, the statcm< nt was an 
example of mischievous journalistic conjecture, which 
should not have been included in the rerort, as the 
Press Commission had not yet formulated its conclu
sions and recommendations. T he U nion (;ovenunent 
had submitted its deta iled comments on those and 
other inaccuracies in the Rapporteur's r eport to the 
Economic and Social Council in document £/2535 o( 
1 February 1954. 
7. The two reports to which he had ref !rred were 
world-wide in their scope and could theref )re be dis
cussed and criticized by any Member St<.te wi thout 
prejudice to its legal position under A rtie e 2, para
graph 7 of the United Nations Charter. The U nion 
Government's concern about reporting mett ods in the 
United Kations was not, however, confin• :cl only to 
those used in the case of world-wide re-)orts. The 
Organization also issued wholly unconstit:.1tional re
ports concentrated directly on the domestic affairs of 
a s ingle Member State, thus rendering it : egally im
possible for the S tate to defend itself in I he 1,; nited 
Nations. In undertaking that kind of activity, the 
United Nations had embarked on a dangerc•us course. 
Inaccurate and tendent ious reports were hardly likely 
to promote the attainment of the Organiza·:ion's p ur
poses, but could all too easily serYe as a nmunition 
for propaganda in the hands of politica; pressure 
groups. 
8. It was time for the United Nations to take stock 
of its activities and, instead of dissipating its efforts on 
projects of doubtful value, to concentrate its energies 
on important and constructive tasks. The criteria for 
such tasks set forth in the introduction to ; he Secre
tary-General 's report (A/2663) 4 were sound and com
mendable and their strict application in dt:tennining 
future priorities would go a long way too,~,ards con
fining the activities of the U nited Nations to worth
while spheres. 
9. In cases where the goo<! name of a Meruber State 
was impugned in world-wide reports, the State should 
at least be given an opportunity of submitting its ovm 
observations and having them printed in the ;ame doc
ument. The existing machinary obviously 1laced the 
aggrieved State at a great disadvantage, as the dam
age was done as soon as the report was issued as an 
official U nited Nations document. 

10. Mr. ZDANO W SKI (Poland ) said that he would 
confine his remarks on chapters I V and "! of the 
Council's report (A/2686) to questions wt ich were 
not listed as separate items on the Committee's agenda 
and, in particular, to the aspect of the righ : of self
determination which related to permanent sovereignty 
over natural wealth and r esources. Independence and 

• Official Record,r o; the GmeroJ Assembly, Nmt~ Sessio11, 
S upPll!ment No.1. 

so,·creignty could be only fictional unless the people 
or nation concerned controlled its natural wealth and 
resources. Poland had C..'Xpericnced exploitation by for
eign cap italists between the two world wars, when its 
national resources had been used by aliens and to serve 
the political and economic interests of great landown
ers and industrial ists. Although those conditions no 
longer prevailed in Poland, ma ny countries, and es
pecially the Non-Self-Governing and T r ust Territories, 
did not enjoy sovereignty over their national wealth. 

11. The Commis~; ion on Human Rights at i.ts tenth 
session had adopted a draft n:solution proposing that 
a commission shouid be established to survey the status 
of that basic constituent of the right of self-determina
tion~ and also a draft resolution recommending the 
establishment of a commission to examine any situa
tion resulting from alleged denial or inadequate realiza
tion of the r ight of self-determination';· When the reso
lut ions had been submitted to the Economic and Social 
Council at its eighteenth session, however, the Council 
had unjustifiably d·::cided to refer the question back to 
the Commission, instead o£ transmitting the resolutions 
to the General A ssembly. T hat decision was yet another 
example of the Council 's tendency to hinder the adop
t ion of provisions aimed at promoting the implementa
tion of the right of self-determination; it had previously 
initiated the movement to divide the covenant into two 
parts, in contrav·ention of the decisions of the Commis
sion and of the General Assembly at its fifth session. 
S uch action was hardly likely to promote the economic 
and social p rogress of na tions or to lead to international 
co-operation. 
12. Mrs. E LLIOT (U nited K ingdom) said that she 
would refer to three matt ers dealt with in chapters IV 
and V of the report (A/2686) : the U nited Nations 
Children's Fund, narcotics control and the status of 
women. 
13. The repo rts before the Committee showed ho w 
universal was international concern with child welfar e. 
On other subjects, there was frequently disagreement 
among nations, but on the vital importance of the work 
of U N ICEF there was none. The United Nations 
Children's Fund was an excellent example of world 
co-operation. 
14. T he programm~s of UN I CEF were so simple that 
everyone could understand what UNICEF workers, the 
best ambassadors of the United Nations, were trying to 
do. The United Nations Children's Fund was hclping 
in the endless struggle against disease by making the 
discoveries of the laboratories available, in their simplest 
fo rm, to combat such terrible diseases as malaria and 
tuberculosis. I t had been established recen tly, but the 
results achieved had been amazing. The U nited Nations 
Children's Fund was carrying on 2SO different pro
grammes in eighty-eight countries all over the world. 
In 1954, 31 million mothers and children would receive 
BCG vaccine and a similar number would be benefited 
by the anti-malarial, anti-yaws and feeding programmes. 
15. Meanwhile, there was a shortage of t rained work
ers to overcome superstition and prejudice a gainst mod
ern medicine and to teach the people of under-d eveloped 
countries how to benefit from medical care. It was of 
enormous import ance that the training of workers 
should be expar1ded. T he U nited Nations Children's 

• See Official Records of th' Ectmomic 411d Social Cou11cil, 
f{igltfu;,th SNsinn, SuNleme>tt No. 7, annex I V, draft resolu
•ion F L 

• !bid., draft resolution F II. 



Fund had assisted 5,500 maternity and child welfare 
centres, but the real problem was the shortage o [ 
trained mid wives, health visitors anti competent super
visors. 
16. A valuable factor in fighting disease had been the 
usc of modt>rn foodstuffs. Apart from operating 165 
milk-conservation plants, CNICEF had used milk sub
stitutC's in ,;ueas where milk could not ;.~asily be obtained. 
Protein foods such as fish flour and cod-liver oil had 
been of great value in promoting good health and com
bating starvation. In addition to milk and other foods 
distributed under emergency programmes, the long
range ieeding programmes in forty-three countries had 
provid<'rl 1,750,000 children with food in 1954. 
17, A gratifying aspect of the reports was the success 
of C"'ICEF in obtaining matching contributions from 
recipient countries, to such an extent that each dollar 
invested in UNICEF had been matched by $1.57 .from 
recipient Governments. The lJNICEF financial report 
showed that its work had expanded each year, and that 
each year more countries had contributed. In 1953, the 
United Kingdom had been able to double its contribu
tion and it was hoped that it \vould at least maintain 
that contribution in future. Some countries were still 
not contribttting, hut the response had been generally 
grntilying. The United Nations Children's Fund had a 
good record of administration but it was necessary to 
keep a careful eye on any extravagance and unnecessary 
expenditure so that the administrative costs could he 
kept as low as possible. 
18. The United Kingdom was particularly grateful to 
CNICEF for its help in many Non-Self-Governing 
Territories, where the administrations, UNICEF and 
the populations had co-operated successfully, The cost 
had been very moderate, owing to the use of mode-rn 
techniques. 
19. Although the international control of narcotic 
drugs received little publicity, it wa:~ of very great 
importance. Drug addiction was not a major problem 
in the Cnited Kingdom, but it was a serious social 
proh1em in certain other countries. It was sad to note 
the conclusion of the Narcotics Commission that in the 
world as a whole addiction and inicit traffic were on the 
increase. The control of narcotics had heen a rna jor 
concern of the international con:munity for many years, 
but the final responsibility for the control of illicit traf
fic belonged to individual Governments. It was there
fore to he hoped that all Governments would adhere 
closelv tn Economic and Social Council resolution 548 
n (XVIII), and especially to the information require
ments under the Conventions of 19257 and 19318 • 

20. During the year a favourable developmeut had 
taken place on the coca leaf problem. Previously, it had 
not hcen generally agreed that the coca leaf was harm
ltd, but the position had changed and it had been 
agreed that countermeasures were necessary. The Peru
vian delegation to the Narcotics Commission partku
larly deserved congratulation ln that connexion. 
21. The United Kingdom delegation hoped hter to 
introduce the joillt draft resolution of France, Turkey 
and the United Kingdom (A/C3/L.432) on the estab~ 
lishment of a United Nations Narcotics J .aboratory at 
Geneva, based on the recommendations of the K arcotics 
Commission and the Economic and Social Council. 

7 Intercational Opium Conv,~ntion, s:gned at Geneva en 19 
Ft>bntary 1925. 

N Cor.vcntion fnr Lir~iting the :M:U'ufacturE' :~r:d Re~t112ting the 
Distribution of Narcotic Drug&, signed <.:.t Gu:eva ou lJ Juiy 1931. 

233 

22. The status of women was one of the most impor
tant social subjects before the Committee. The United 
Kingdom Government would have preferred the ques
tion of the nationality of married ·women to be dealt 
with In the general context of nationality and stateless
ness, hut meanwhile it supported the majority view 
that there should he a convention such as that pro
posed by the Cuban representative, in which account 
had been taken of many of the United Kingdom Gov
ernment's observations. 

23. The United K!ngdom Government's position on 
equa! pay for equal work 'vas that the Government had 
no pmver over the v.rages and salaries of most workers, 
which were negotiated by trade unions and by indi
vidual contracts, but it supported the principle of equal 
pay ior equal work and was taking steps to apply it to 
Govtrnment employees. 

24. The acute shortage of trained women to work in 
teaching. social and health acth'ities made the question 
of part-time work very important. It was gratifying to 
note that the International Labour Organisation would 
continue to study the problems of part-time employ
ment of older women, and that its conclusions would 
he considered by the Commission on the Status oi 
Women, 

25. Although the Commi&>ion on the Status of Women 
had heen understandably interested in the protection 
of the mother and child, the Economic and Social Coun
cil had been wise to resolve that the subject should be 
considered further hy the Social Commission1 to avoid 
possihk: duplication of effort. 

Mr. Nunes (Costa Rica) took the Chair. 

26. Mrs. LORD (United States of America) said that 
by omitting mention of the Secretariaes work the 
Council's report (A/2686) had not done full justice 
to the social activities of the T_.Tnited Nations. She drew 
the Committee's attention to the Secretary-General's 
annual report on the work of the Organization 
(A/2663), in which the Secretariat's social acth~ties 
had been summarized. It would be useful H. in the 
future, a brief summary of the Secretariat's work were 
included in the Councii's report. so that the Committee 
\vould be in order in di~cussing it. 

27. The change in the title of UNICEF reflected the 
trend towards the development of permanent services 
for children, especially in under-developed countries. 
That meant that permanent health services could con
solidate the achievements of the mass health campaigns. 
It was heartening to note that some Governments were 
taking over activities initiated hy UNICEF. The real 
test o£ the work of UNICET~~ was the achievement of 
permanent results of the kind stressed by the Genera) 
Assembl)' in its resolutions on UNICEF. The object 
of tbe activities of UNICEF should be the permanent 
improvement of children's health. 

28. The United States delegation was pleased that 
much progress had been made in co-ordinating the 
work of UNICEF with that of the specialized agencies 
and the United Nations social welfare- programme. The 
new policy of financing limited local cosh should be 
app1ie.d with Froper caution test it undermine sdf
help, the cardinal principle of CNICEF assistance. 

29. The United States Government had always sup
ported international action to control the manufacture 
and trade in narcotic drugs as a kind of collective 
security deserving the fullest support of all Govern-



234 General Ass·~mbly-Ninth Seseiun-Third Committ~ 

ments. The international opium protocol ( E/::-rT /8) 9, 

which the United States had signed and which the 
Senate had approved by 7l votes to none, "'lS a major 
step forward in the international control of narcotics, 
and the United States delegation hoped that the largest 
possible number of States would ratify it. It was to be 
hoped, too, that many more States woulc ratify the 
Protocol on synthetic drugs of 194810 A najority of 
nations had prohibited the manufacture ar d importa
tion of heroin~ a highly dangerous addiction-producing 
drug which \Vas not indispensable in medicine. 
30. A large amount of the narcotics seiz-~d in illicit 
trade could be traced to Communist China. As Com
munist China was a police State, it had to )C assumed 
that there was official complicity. The Llnlted States 
delegation supported the Chinese represent1-tive's rec
ommendation that that problem required sp:cial atten
tion. 
31. The United States delegation general!; endorsed 
the Council's action to promote freedom of information 
and whole~ heartedly supported its recommendation that 
the Secretary-General should be authorized to provide 
technical assistance in that field. The C n ted States 
reaffirmed its devotior!: to freedom of speed: and free
dom of the Press. and its desire to co-o;)erate in all 
United 1\ations activities to promote theffi. 
32. It '''as gratifying to note the stead,;· progress 
being made yea:r hy year in the achievement of politi
cal rights by \vomen, The Secretary-Genen.l's repott 
shcn'<'ed that \vOmcn enjoyed full political rigl.ts in sixty 
countries (A/2663, chapter 11, section A, 11 (a)) and 
since the publication of that report the Govt rnment of 
Colombia had extended full political rights o women. 
Similar action seemed likely in Peru. 

33. The fact of stressing political rights did not mean 
that there was no need to promote equal :rights for 
women in other fields, but history had shown that 
equal suffrage was a pre-condition of equal rights in 
other fields. The Cortnnission on the Status of \Vomen 
had developed a number of useful methods for dealing 
with those problems. Some of the Cotnmissio:l's resolu
tions1 however, had been so concerned witt the spe
cific legislation of States and so encumbered 'Vith detail 
tha.t the United States delegation had been unable to 
support them. In future. the Commission mitht devote 
more attention to practical measures1 particu!ariy edu
cation. 
34. The Council had already requested the Commis· 
siou on Human Rights to study further me;.sures for 
promoting the right of seli-determination. In accord
ance with its traditions and with the Charter of the 
United Na:ions, the United Statep, supported the prin
ciple of equal rights and self-determination of peoples, 
which the Pacific Charter, recently procb.imed at 
Manila, fully recognized. lt should be stressed that the 
right of sell-determination did not relate only to de
pendent territories, as some speake<s had seemed to 
insist, but also to the vast new commtmis ~ empire. 
Indeed, the problem was much more sign if cant and 
urgent there than in the Non-Sclf-Governirg Terri· 
tories. 

~See United Nations Opium Conference, Protocol and Final 
Act, siqn~:d at Nr.J..r York, 23 June 1953. United Natior s Pub1ica
t:ons, Sales No.: 1953.XI.6. 

l~> Protocol, sJg:1ed at Paris on 19 November 194~, bringing 
1~nder international control drugs outside the scope o: the Con
vention of 13 July 1931 for Limiting the M?Jmfacture md Regu
lating the Distribution of Narcotic Drugs, as amem ed by the 
Protocol signf'd at Lake Success on 11 December 1946 

35. Since the Commission on Human Rights was no 
longer preoccupieC:: with the drafting of international 
instruments, it \vonld be able at its next session to give 
fdl attel!tion to other items on Hs agenda. Its most 
importa<1t task \Vot11d be to devise practical means for 
promoting human right<>. l\iany proposals for such 
measure:; had been rnade by various Governments~ the 
Secretary-Gf'neral, and non-" governmental organizations. 
The United States Government had introduced three 
proposals for bienr,ial reports from Governments, spe
cial studies of individual rights, and technical assist
auceY The Commission would have an opportunity to 
consider and perfect all those various proposals and 
consolidate them it; to a practicable programme. 

36. The United Nations had moved ahead with re
gard to the social field and human rights. Progress was 
necessarily slow but the \'ery -fact that the Organiza
tion was debating those problems aud trying to find 
solutions for them should give encouragement and hope 
to people everywhere. 
37. Mr. SAKSI~ (Union of Soviet Socialist Repub
lics), speaking on a point of order, objected to the fact 
that the United States representative used the absence 
of th{: legitimate representative of China in the Com
mittee to make slanderous attacks against the great 
Chinese people. He protested against such practices, 
which did not redound to the credit of the United 
States representative. 
38. Similar mendacious attacks against the People's 
Republic of China had been made before in the Com
mission on Narcotic Drugs and the Economic aud So
cial CounciL The C SSR delegations to those bodies 
had amply prm•ed that the fahrkations were useless 
and unfounded, It was true that foreign exploiters had 
iu the past derived vast profit:; from the opium trade. 
Since China hfid c._1-st off the imperialist yoke, however, 
the position had changed t..:ntirely and the production 
and use of narcotic drugs was prohibited IJy law. 

39. The CHAJ RMA~ said that the USSR represen
tative's statem.ent had not been a point of order; he 
had been exercising the right of reply under rule 116 
of the rules of procedure. 
40. Mr. TSAO (China) a;;rced with that interpreta
tion. He would avail himself oi the same right in due 
course in order to exp1aJn more fully about the illicit 
traffic in narcotic drugs on the mainland of China, a 
matter which he had raised first and on which he had 
been supported by the United States representative. 

Mr. Nosek (Czedoslovakia) resumed the Chair. 

4L Mr. KUEHN (France) said that France, as a 
member of the Executive Board of t;NICEF, had 
taken the greatest i:r.terest in the day-to-day activities 
of the Fund and of its secretariat, to which it wished 
to pay a tribute. The: extent of the assistance given IJy 
the Fund, as shown in paragraph 576 of the Council's 
report (A/2686). was impressive. His delegation was 
particularly gratified to see that G:\'TCEF was helping 
the execution of programmes in seventy-eight countries 
or territories and th3.t the Board had decided in 1954 
to extend its help to thirteen more. That success was 
due to good co-ordination between the sccretariae.s 
work and inter-governmental activities. It was also due 
to the painstaking way in which policy \Vas worked 
out. The general outlines, 1vorked out by the secretariat 
and Member States, were brought up to date from 

n See Official Records of the Economic and Soda! Council, 
Sixteeuth Session, Supplement No.8, paras. 263,269 and 271. 



588th meeting-19 NovcUlber 1954 

time to time, in order to keep abreast of nev.· scientific 
discoveries. The system of committee work had been 
satisfactory. Thus, an Ad Hoc Board Policy Com
mittee, cueeting in sprlr:g 1954 and composed of gov
ernmental representatives~ had suggested guiding prin
ciples, which had been approved by the Board. The 
Committee on Administrative Budget was careful to 
keep adrninistrative costs as low as possible. The Pro
gramme Committee prepared the Executive Board's 
decisions. Success had also been achieved by excellent 
collaboration with the Department of Social Affairs, 
the 'Norld Health Organization and the Food and 
Agriculture Organization of the United Nations. An
other important factor was the collaboration of the bene
ficiary Governments~ v,rhich submitted their own pro
grammes to UNICEF and thus ensured that the special 
conditions prevailing in each country were taken into 
account. Very often international action merely prov1ded 
a lever for the programmes and after a few years the 
beneficiary Governments operated the programmes on 
their own. In aU cases, Governments made matching 
contributions, often larger than those supplied by the 
Fund. 

42. The Commission on Narcotic Drugs had extended 
its work from the legal to the medico-social realm. It 
was methodically studying the enforcement of interna
tional treaties concerning narcotic drugs. A new de
velopment had been the 1953 opium protocol, already 
ratified by a number of countries, Good progress had 
been made in drafting the proposed single convention. 
International enforcement wa:; being carried on effi
ciently by the Permanent Central Opium Board 
and the Supervisory Body. Progress had been made 
on the coca leaf problem, thanks to the collaboration 
of the countries concerned. The Council and the Com
mission had pa1d due attention to the problem of 
synthetic narcotic drugs, more dangerous, because easier 
to obtainJ than opium or heroin and had asked Govern
ments to prohibit the manufacture, import and export 
of ketobemidone. His delegation favoured the estab
lishment of a C nlted Nations narcotics laboratory and 
had co-sponsored a draft resolution (A/C.3/L.432) on 
the subject. 
43. The Council would be discussing in 1955 a pro
gramme of concerted practical action in the social 
field. Prevailing conditions and the many pressures 
exerted within international organizations compelled 
those organizations to deal with social problems some
what haphazardly. Obviously, no uniform programme 
of social progress throughout the world could be drawn 
up, but more effort should be made to draw a clear 
distinction between the responsibilities to be assumed 
bv Governments, which could only be stimulated by 
the United Nations, and the responsibilities normally 
incumbent on the international organizations. Social 
activities embraced both specific technical activities, such 
as demography, narcotic drugs and refugees, and far 
more generalized and sometimes even rather vague 
proiects such us the improvement of living standards. 
The two groups of problems arose in varyi~g politkal, 
economic and historical contexts and thetr so1ut1on 
could be sought only empirically. The solutions wo~ld 
be effective to the extent that governmental actwn 
was coherent and international assistance fle..xible. The 
Council had borne those considerations -in mind ; the 
Preliminary Report on the World Socwt Situation 
(E/CN.5/267/Rev.l) 12 was to be welcomed. That 

a Uni:-ed Natkms Publications, Sales No.: 1952.IV.11. 

--~----------~ 

and similar studies showed that the international 
officials were well aware of the interrelation of their 
efforts, while they enabled national officials to obtain 
a comparative assessment of sodal problems and ways 
of solving them. The publication of a situation report 
and also of a report on national and international 
measures every four years would make it possible for 
the reports to be examined alternately every two years, 
and the competent departments of the i¥1cmher States 
would in the me~ntime have leisure thoroughly to 
study the conclusions and recommendations of the 
international agencies concerned. The same considera
tion justified ho1ding meetings of the Socjal Com
mission every two years. 
44. His delegation did not overlook the importance 
of the sections in chapters IV and V of the Council's 
report dealing with sach matters as 3lavery and the 
:statu~ of womt.:ll; Lu: it hctd expressed its Yie\\':5 
fully to the CounciL The matters on which he had 
dwdt showed that effective action useful to the inter
national community could be carried on in fields which 
did not lend themselves to e,!oquent exposition. 
45. !vir. LUCIO (:VIexico) said that his delegation 
welcomed the Council's amendment of its resolution 
496 (XVI) by resolution 511 (XVI), witb its explicit 
reference to the improvement of the situation with 
respect to health, education and socbi welfare in the 
N"on-Self-Governing and Trust Territories, as that 
provi.-;.o :itt::J '.Ytil \'.-·ith the prnvisiou in n:sc:a~-km -iSJG 
(XVI) referring to the special attention to be given 
to the under-developed areas. Referring to the world
wide interest in the improvement of living conditionB, 
he stated that the ~fexican Government had recently 
established rural wel£are centres, well equipped and 
embracing a very wide scope of activities. 

46. His Government attached particLtlar importance 
to Council resolution 543 (XVIII) on CXICEF and 
approved of the Executive Board1s 1-"olicy of longer
range planning set out in paragraphs 582 and 583 of the 
Council's report (A/2686). Assistance from 1JXTCEF 
tvouiJ thus induce Governments to plan long·tcnn 
national prograrnnws in uldltion to the immediate 
assistance they re,ceivcd. The 10\v administrative costs 
of lJNTCEF -were also to be commended. The ex
tcn:-;ion of l;NJCEF asslstance to ~evcnty-eight coun
trit>s showed how '-Vise the General Asstmhlv had been 
in recommending that UNICEF should "be a ver
manent institution, As tlie world economic situation 
inprovcd, UNICEF would certainly receive larger 
contributions. 
47. The 'Mexican delegation felt that the idea of the 
enforcement abroad of claims for maintenance, subject 
to the domestic legislation of each country, \varrantt>d 
support. The competent ~iexican authorities were 
studying the draft conventions on the recovery ahroad 
of cbi:us h<r maintenaw:::e and on ih'~' cnforcct~lc;;~ 
abroad of maintenance orders recommended bv the 
Council in resolution 527 (XVII). ~ 
-+8. \Yith rtgartl to narcotic drugs, in the cor:trol of 
which Mexico had actively collabor~ted, his delega
tion hoped that the proposed single convention would 
soon be completed. 
49. The Council's decision to defer action on the 
recommendations concerning international respect for 
the right of peoples and nations to self-determination, 
contrary to General Assembly rewlutions 637 (VII) 
and 738 (VIII), was regrettable. Anything which re
tarded the application of the principle oi self-deter-



236 Ceneral Asfctnbly-Niuth Ses&ion-Thlrd CommiUee 

ruination, regardless of the technical rea:;ons alleged 
in justification, was a serious impedime-1t to inter
national peace. 
SO. The confer ence of non-governmental crganizations 
interested in the eradication of prejudice a od discrimi
nation proposed in Council resolution 546 (XVIII) 
would be of g reat value to the work (•f the Sub
Commission on P revention of Discrimination and 
P rotection of Minorities and to the Con•mission on 
Human Rights. 
51. In connexion with . ection XI of chapter V, of 
t he Council's report dealing with the statu! of women, 
and the reference to Mexico in paragraph .'97, be was 

Printed in U.S.A. 

happy to report t hat in the only federal election 
held since the enactment of the legislative reform 
granting women full political rights, a woman had 
been elected deputy to the F t'<leral Congress. Many 
more would p robably be elected at the forthcoming 
federal and local elections. 

52. The CHAIRMAN suggested that the list of 
speakers should he closed, and the time limit for the 
submission of draft resolutions be set, at 1 p.m. on 
Monday, 22 November 1954. 

It was so agreed. 

The 111ecting rose at 1.5 p.m. 

S-42051- December 1954-1,850 




